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April 16, 2003

OSU @ Tulsa

700 N Greenwood

Tulsa, Oklahoma

Approved  AQC 

July 16, 2003

Notice of Public Meeting   The Air Quality Council convened for its regular meeting at 9:00 a.m. April 16, 2003, in North Hall 150 at OSU@Tulsa. Notice of the meeting was forwarded to the Office of the Secretary of State giving the date, time, and place of the meeting.  Agendas were posted twenty-four hours prior to the meeting on the entrance doors at the meeting facility and at the DEQ Central Office in Oklahoma City.  

As protocol officer, Mr. David Dyke convened the hearings by the Air Quality Council in compliance with the Oklahoma Administrative Procedures Act and Title 40 CFR Part 51, and Title 27A, Oklahoma Statutes, Sections 2-5-201 and 2-5-101 - 2-5-118.  Mr. Dyke entered the Agenda and the Oklahoma Register Notice into the record.  He added that forms were at the sign in table for anyone wishing to comment on any of the rules.  

Roll was called and a quorum confirmed.

	MEMBERS PRESENT

David Branecky

Bill Breisch

Gary Kilpatrick

Bob Lynch  (arrived at 9:15)

Sharon Myers

Joel Wilson

MEMBERS ABSENT

Rick Treeman

Gary Martin
	DEQ STAFF PRESENT

Eddie Terrill

David Dyke

Scott Thomas

Pam Dizikes

Kendall Cody

Joyce Sheedy

Max Price

Pat Sullivan

Cheryl Bradley

	OTHERS PRESENT

Sign-in sheet is attached as an official part of these Minutes


	Dawson Lasseter

Ray Bishop

Annette Sharp

Myrna Bruce


Approval of Minutes   Ms. Myers called agenda item number 3, Approval of Minutes of the January 15, 2003, Regular Meeting.  Hearing no discussion, she called for a motion to approve the Minutes as presented.  Mr. Breisch made the motion with Mr. Kilpatrick making the second.

	Roll call.

David Branecky                Yes

Joel Wilson
      Yes

Bill Breisch                       Yes
	Gary Kilpatrick                 Yes

Sharon Myers
      Yes

Motion carried.



Rulemaking - OAC 252:100-13 Open Burning   

Ms. Pat Sullivan advised that this proposal had been before the Council on January 15, 2003.  Ms. Sullivan stated that the changes would apply primarily for the purposes of fire training.  She  pointed out the proposed new definitions and requirements adding that other non-substantive changes had been made for clarification of the rule.  She pointed out that staff recommendation was to continue the hearing until action had been taken by the 49th Legislature.  Ms. Sullivan and Mr. Terrill fielded questions and comments.  Mr. Bob Kellogg made public comments and entered his comments into the record.  Ms. Myers entertained a motion to continue the meeting.  Mr. Kilpatrick made the motion and the second came from Mr. Branecky.

	Roll call.

David Branecky                Yes

Joel Wilson
      Yes

Bob Lynch

      Yes


	Bill Breisch                       Yes

Gary Kilpatrick                 Yes

Sharon Myers
      Yes
Motion carried.


OAC 252:100-7  Permits for Minor Facilities 

Mr. Dyke called Agenda Item 4B and called upon Dr. Joyce Sheedy for staff proposal.  Dr. Sheedy advised that proposal would establish a new permit exempt facility category to replace the existing permit by rule category.  She stated that a similar proposal had been before the Council in April 2001.  She added that facilities that qualify for this category would not be required to obtain an air quality permit, nor pay an annual operating fee; and would submit an emission inventory every three years.  Dr. Sheedy introduced Mr. Max Price who gave a presentation of the data used to make this determination.  A copy of that presentation was handed out to the Council.   

Dr. Sheedy pointed out that proposed changes would need to be made in Subchapters 5; 7; 19; 23; 24; and 37 and would revoke Appendix L.  She added that it is anticipated that EPA would require a demonstration that the proposed revision would not violate any applicable portions of control strategy or interfere with the attainment or the maintenance of NAAQS. Staff requested that the Council continue the hearing.  Questions and comments were received from Council and public.  It was recommended that a workgroup be formed to fully discuss the issues.

Ms. Myers entertained a motion to continue the hearing.  Mr. Breisch made the motion with Dr. Lynch making the second.

	Roll call.

David Branecky                Yes

Joel Wilson
      Yes

Bob Lynch

      Yes


	Bill Breisch                       Yes

Gary Kilpatrick                 Yes

Sharon Myers
      Yes
Motion carried.


Rulemaking - OAC 252:100-5 Registration, Emission Inventory and Annual Operating Fees

Dr. Joyce Sheedy advised that the Department is proposing a revision to OAC 252:100-5-2.2(b)(1)(C) and (b)(2)(D) that would increase annual fees for both minor facilities and Part 70 sources from $22.28 to $27.78.  The proposal would also delete language related to annual fees for minor facilities.  Mr. Terrill interjected that this fee proposal is in response to the Governor’s budget proposal to raise fees by eight percent throughout all sectors.  Mr. Terrill fielded questions from Council and public.  Following considerable conversation on the matter, Ms. Myers called for a motion to continue the hearing to Council’s next hearing. Motion was made by Mr. Branecky. Mr. Kilpatrick made the second. 

	Roll call.

David Branecky                Yes

Joel Wilson
      Yes

Bob Lynch

      Yes


	Bill Breisch                       Yes

Gary Kilpatrick                 Yes

Sharon Myers
      Yes
Motion carried.


Division Director’s Report – Mr. Terrill announced that Larry Byrum would be retiring his position with CenSARA at the end of his contract.  Mr. Terrill called upon Mr. Dawson Lasseter who reported on number of permits issued and advised that the permit staff had increased to 28 people.  Mr. Lasseter fielded questions from the public regarding permit section activities.  Mr. Lasseter also announced that portable engine analyzer guidance is now on the website.   Mr. Terrill announced that the next deadline for Early Action Compact (EAC) for control strategies would be June 16.  He also announced that Council would have a new member, Ms. Sandra Rose, upon confirmation.  

With no new business to discuss, meeting adjourned 11:20 a.m.

A copy of the hearing transcripts are attached and made an official part of these Minutes.
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 1

 2                           PROCEEDINGS

 3                  MS. MYERS:   Let's go ahead and

 4   call the meeting to order, please, and get

 5   started.

 6                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Branecky.

 7                  MR. BRANECKY:   Here.

 8                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Wilson.

 9                  MR. WILSON:   Here.

10                  MS. BRUCE:   Dr. Lynch, absent for

11   now.   Mr. Breisch.

12                  MR. BREISCH:   Here.

13                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Kilpatrick.

14                  MR. KILPATRICK:   Here.

15                  MS. BRUCE:   Ms. Myers.

16                  MS. MYERS:   Yes.

17                  MS. BRUCE:   For the record,

18   absent are Rick Treeman and Gary Martin.

19                  MS. MYERS:   Okay.   The first item

20   on the Agenda is approval of the Minutes

21   for the January meeting.   Anybody have any

22   questions or comments about that?   I'll

23   entertain a motion.

24                  MR. BREISCH:   I'll so move.

25                  MR. KILPATRICK:   I'll second.

                                                   Christy A. Myers            

                                                                                     Certified Shorthand Reporter
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 1                  MS. MYERS:   We have a motion and

 2   a second.   Myrna, would call the role.

 3                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Branecky.

 4                  MR. BRANECKY:   Yes.

 5                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Wilson.

 6                  MR. WILSON:   Yes.

 7                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Breisch.

 8                  MR. BREISCH:   Yes.

 9                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Kilpatrick.

10                  MR. KILPATRICK:   Yes.

11                  MS. BRUCE:   Ms. Myers.

12                  MS. MYERS:   Yes.

13                  MR. DYKE:   We'll now move in to

14   the Hearing portion of the agenda.   

15             Good morning, I'm David Dyke.   I'm

16   Assistant Director of the Air Quality

17   Division, and I'll be the Protocol Officer

18   today.   These hearings will be convened by

19   the Council in compliance with the Oklahoma

20   Administrative Procedures Act in Title 40

21   of the Code of the Federal Regulations,

22   Part 51, as well as the authority of Title

23   27A of the Oklahoma Statutes, Section 2-2-

24   201, Sections 2-5-101 through 2-5-118.

25             These hearings were advertised in

                                                   Christy A. Myers            
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 1   the Oklahoma Register for the purpose of

 2   receiving comments pertaining to the

 3   proposed OAC Title 252 Chapter 100 rules as

 4   listed on the Agenda and will be entered

 5   into the record along with the Oklahoma

 6   Register filing.

 7             If you wish to make a statement,

 8   please complete a form at the registration

 9   table, and you will be called upon at the

10   appropriate time, and we'll probably open

11   it up today for other comments as well.

12             At this time, we will proceed with

13   what is marked on the Agenda Item 4A, OAC

14   252-100:13 Open Burning.

15             I call on staff member, Pat

16   Sullivan.

17                  MS. SULLIVAN:   Thank you, David.

18             Madame Chair -- is that too loud -- 

19   Members of the Council, ladies and

20   gentlemen, my name is Pat Sullivan, and I

21   am an environmental specialist in the Air

22   Quality Division, Rules Unit.   I am

23   standing in for Lisa Donovan today.   

24             At the January Council, the

25   Department proposed changes to OAC 252:100-
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 1   13, Open Burning.   Changes apply primarily

 2   to open burning for the purposes of fire

 3   training, adding definitions for Fire

 4   Training, and Man-made structure in OAC

 5   252:100-13-2.   

 6             Changes were also made in 13-7

 7   asking for written authorization to the

 8   local fire chief and a ten-day notification

 9   to DEQ before burning.   Changes require

10   that structures constructed before 1978 be

11   free of lead-based paint before burning as

12   recommended by federal regulation in 40 CFR

13   745.227 and that asbestos and asphalt be

14   removed in accordance with 40 CFR 61.145.   

15             Changes also prohibit fire training

16   on demolished structures and require

17   notification of affected parties within 500

18   feet of the proposed burning site.   

19             Other changes are non-substative and

20   are for clarification only.

21             At this time, Oklahoma's 49th

22   Legislature has before it Senate Bill 546

23   on Open Burning which would also address

24   this issue.

25             Staff recommends continuing the

                                                   Christy A. Myers            
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 1   Department's proposals for Subchapter 13

 2   until action has been taken by the 49th

 3   Legislature.

 4                  MR. DYKE:   Questions of Ms.

 5   Sullivan from the Council?

 6                  MR. BRANECKY:   Pat, in our packet

 7   it was stated that you made a presentation

 8   to some of the fire chiefs, and a couple of

 9   the fire chiefs made comments.   Would those

10   be oral comments or were they written

11   comments, because I don't see anything in

12   my packet.

13                  MS. SULLIVAN:   The comments are

14   not in your packet, and they were -- there

15   were lots of oral comments there that did

16   result in some emails and -- actually, I

17   have a comment sheet from Lisa, that was on

18   her desk, I think that all the comments

19   were addressed in the changes to the rule.

20                  MR. BRANECKY:   Okay.

21                  MS. SULLIVAN:   And of course, we

22   have compiled those for the effective

23   summary, but I mean, that's not -- sorry.

24                  MR. TERRILL:   Well, I think there

25   are a lot of comments that were not

                                                   Christy A. Myers            
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 1   pertaining to the part of the rule that's

 2   open.   It had to do with the section on

 3   whether or not you can burn -- and then

 4   burn permits, things that have been on the

 5   books for thirty years that, apparently,

 6   some folks are just now figuring out that

 7   are there.   And so that's where the bulk of

 8   the comments came from.   And we don't even

 9   have that part of the rule open.   I think

10   we've addressed the ones that they did that

11   were pertinent.   And the other ones, we'll

12   just have to take up at another time, if

13   the Council so chooses.

14             But I think there's a reasonable

15   chance that we won't bring this rule back,

16   because every indication we get is that

17   that piece of legislation will probably

18   pass.   When it does, that's going to remove

19   this and take care of it statutorily, so

20   you all may not see this again.   It may not

21   come back to it, we'll just have to see.

22                  MS. SULLIVAN:   If we do bring it

23   back, David, I'll be sure and include those

24   comments that we have.

25                  MR. BRANECKY:   Thank you.

                                                   Christy A. Myers            
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 1                  MR. DYKE:   Are there other

 2   questions of Ms. Sullivan from the public? 

 3   I have notice that Bob Kellogg wishes to

 4   make a statement.   Bob.   Thank you, Pat. 

 5                  MR. KELLOGG:   Madame Chairman,

 6   ladies and gentlemen of the Council, good

 7   morning.   My name is Bob Kellogg -- good

 8   morning to every one else, as well.   I'm

 9   here to comment on the Open Burning Rules. 

10   I'm not exactly sure what all is open or

11   not open, but I want to bring a problem to

12   your attention.   And I say this -- the

13   rules may have been on the books for thirty

14   years.   I haven't gone back to see what

15   they look like thirty years ago, but I can

16   remember thirty years ago, without

17   revealing my age.   I know that it was in

18   the early 70's, I believe it was Jack

19   Gallion (PS) told me about the Open Burning

20   Rule and how it was done to assist the

21   state fire marshal with preventing plains

22   fires from ravaging Oklahoma, and it seemed

23   like a noble thing to have been done, to

24   me.   I was just a young pup at the time,

25   and eager to learn and get out and do
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 1   things for the environment, and didn't

 2   think much about it ever since that time. 

 3   But as the other laws in Oklahoma came to

 4   be developed, something happened that

 5   included brush along with refuse.   In

 6   Oklahoma, solid waste -- the definition of

 7   solid waste includes brush, and domestic

 8   refuse, and essentially everything else,

 9   including liquids.   What I have learned

10   since I have recently been in private

11   practice, through some of my small

12   municipal clients, especially in the rural

13   areas -- obviously that's where the small

14   municipalities would be -- in the small

15   landfills in the rural areas, there is a

16   problem with brush.   Brush represents a

17   disposal problem that is not only

18   expensive, but it takes up a lot of space

19   in landfills.   And the reason it is a

20   problem there, is because it is lumped in

21   along with other prohibitions against open

22   burning.   When I saw that the rule was open

23   for comments, I took a look at the

24   regulations in the other states of Region

25   VI, and I found that in Arkansas and
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 1   Louisiana, there's really no prohibition

 2   against the burning of brush, although

 3   there is for other materials, but there are

 4   some criteria that attach, which of course

 5   is desirable.

 6             I don't think anyone would expect to

 7   find the ability to just burn brush

 8   whenever they wanted to, no matter what the

 9   winds were, no matter what the density of

10   the air might be on a particular day.   I

11   was somewhat amused to see that in New

12   Mexico, there's no restriction on the

13   burnings of tumbleweeds.   That seemed

14   appropriate somehow, to me.   Then in Texas,

15   of course, there is, very similar to

16   Oklahoma, there's no restrictions for

17   onsite burning, where there's no practical

18   alternative.   And practical is defined in

19   the Texas rules to include economic

20   factors.

21             And so I began talking to the staff

22   of the DEQ to see what kind of a problem

23   brush was, and I've learned through the

24   monitoring program that there's not a PM

25   2.5 problem in Oklahoma.   And so it seems
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 1   to me that here is an opportunity to

 2   resolve a problem, at least for our rural

 3   areas, and perhaps even for the ECLS

 4   Division to remove some of the work they

 5   have to do in taking complaints about open

 6   burning.

 7             I'm not asking that the staff

 8   consider unlimited burning, but rather some

 9   reasonable criteria that allows for the

10   burning of brush that would not create a

11   risk to the citizens, and it would save

12   money.   I have enclosed for the Department,

13   a compilation of the Open Burning

14   Regulations from the other five states in

15   the region.   I'm sorry I didn't include a

16   copy of that for each of you Council

17   Members, but it is available if you wish,

18   along with my letter.   And if you have any

19   questions, I'll be glad to respond.

20                  MR. DYKE:   Questions for Mr.

21   Kellogg from the Council?   Questions of Mr.

22   Kellogg from the public?

23                  MR. KELLOGG:   Thank you, David.

24                  MR. DYKE:   Thanks, Bob.

25             Is there anyone else wishing to
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 1   speak on this rule at this time?

 2                  MR. WILSON:   David, I guess I

 3   have a question to the state, whether or

 4   not you would consider branch trimmings as

 5   brush?

 6                  MR. TERRILL:   I believe that

 7   probably would fall underneath that.

 8                  MR. WILSON:   And the rule allows

 9   for the burning of that?

10                  MS. SULLIVAN:   No.

11                  MR. TERRILL:   I don't think so.

12                  MR. WILSON:   Does it not?

13                  MR. TERRILL:   I don't think so.

14                  MS. MYERS:   No, the branch

15   trimmings are included with domestic refuse

16   and you're not allowed to burn that.

17                  MS. CODY:   My name is Kendal

18   Cody, Legal Counsel for the Department. 

19   Main exemption for the open burning is for

20   that, is the land clearing and that is

21   where that would go.   Let's see -- usually

22   fires purposely set to forest, crop or

23   ranch lands (in).   That's where -- right

24   now we don't have anything for the brush,

25   like Bob was telling you about.   It would
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 1   have to fall under the Land Management and

 2   Land Clearing Operation?

 3                  MR. WILSON:   It's not a domestic

 4   refuse?

 5                  MS. CODY:   No, it's not.   That's

 6   more a household trash.

 7                  MR. WILSON:   But under domestic

 8   refuse definition, is a branch -- is brush

 9   branch trimming, yes or no?

10                  MS. CODY:   I don't know, to tell

11   the truth.

12                  MR. TERRILL:   I think it is.

13                  MS. MYERS:   At least you're

14   honest.

15                  MS. CODY:   Yes.   I don't know

16   what the brush would all entail.   I have no

17   idea.   It could be but I'm not sure.

18                  DR. SHEEDY:   This is Joyce

19   Sheedy.   I know that in some instances -- I

20   think Tulsa does this -- I think they do

21   this in Tulsa when they have a bad storm,

22   they have a lot of branches down, that they

23   -- the city does in an open pit

24   incinerator.

25                  MS. CODY:   And that would fall
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 1   more under an emergency situations where

 2   there's disasters, or you know, major

 3   storms, tornadoes, things like that.   That

 4   would fall under that exemption.

 5                  MR. DYKE:   Are there any other

 6   questions from the public of staff? 

 7   Questions from the Council?

 8                  MR. WILSON:   I want to ask Mr.

 9   Kellogg a question here, if I can.   What do

10   you consider to be brush?

11                  MR. KELLOGG:   While using a

12   common sense definition, I think what's in

13   the rules is part of the problem.   It

14   includes tree clippings and things like

15   that with the definition of refuse and

16   household waste.   I'm not looking to open

17   up burn barrels again for household

18   garbage, but there is a bit of unfairness

19   in Oklahoma.   If someone is clearing a

20   highway right-of-way -- and you've all seen

21   it -- kerosene is used to ignite fresh

22   green trees and all that material, and that

23   is a lot of smoke that comes off of that,

24   plus the kerosene that's used as an

25   ignitor.   In other instances where it's not
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 1   a land clearing operation, cities, for

 2   example, have to go through, to follow the

 3   rules -- if they have a brush pile, they

 4   would have to go through a drill of saying

 5   it's fire training.   And nobody is opposed

 6   to having the fire department involved in

 7   something like this, but it seems a little

 8   awkward to say, well, gee, we're going to

 9   call this fire training, and they'll be out

10   to watch and make sure it doesn't get out

11   of control, which is good.   But absent the

12   fire training, it can't be done.   And all

13   I'm asking is that brush piles -- and I

14   think the staff has expressed a willingness

15   to visit with me and try to work up some

16   language to come back to you with in the

17   future, that would make sure that brush,

18   something reasonable as that, would be

19   defined in such a manner that it wouldn't

20   open up the door to regular household

21   refuse, which I think is certainly not any

22   desire.

23             So to answer your question

24   specifically, well, sure, I think it

25   includes tree clippings.   It might even
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 1   have some of the leaves that are on there. 

 2   But it certainly wouldn't be a sack of

 3   garbage from the kitchen.   

 4                  DR. SHEEDY:   Would you intend,

 5   then, for householders to be burning brush

 6   in their yards?

 7                  MR. KELLOGG:   My letter -- and

 8   I'm sorry, Joyce, I didn't have a copy for

 9   you, but in my letter -- I live in Edmond

10   and I have an acre of oak trees, and I have

11   more leaves than I can shake a stick at. 

12   And I have, for seven or eight years now,

13   been trying to come up with a way to find a

14   use for them, and I have not.   I don't

15   think I should be included in that because

16   I'm in a crowded area.   But certainly in

17   the rural parts of the state, absolutely. 

18   And that was part of my letter, is in a

19   rural setting, and there absolutely should

20   be conditions.   The fire department should

21   be notified, certainly the DEQ, wind

22   conditions, the atmosphere -- whether it's

23   heavy and would hold smoke down, all of

24   those things should be a factor.

25             I'm not suggesting that it be made
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 1   wide open for burning by anyone at any

 2   time, but it should be allowed with some

 3   controls, so that we don't have to go

 4   through the wink-wink, it's fire training

 5   drill, but yet still do good for the

 6   citizens.

 7             Thank you.

 8                  MR. KILPATRICK:   I have two

 9   questions.   One, is what's before the

10   legislature, does it address this issue?

11                  MS. CODY:   No, it does not.

12                  MR. TERRILL:   It deals with the

13   issue that's open right now with the

14   structures.

15                  MR. KILPATRICK:   And then the

16   second point was, technically what we're

17   talking about now is not open, or at least,

18   we could bring it up later as a proposal,

19   but that's not one of the things that's

20   been advertised at this hearing. 

21                  MR. TERRILL:   That's correct. 

22   That's correct.   It would have to be

23   brought up as a -- I guess the Council

24   could direct us to go back and take a look

25   at it, or we could get a citizen's request
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 1   to do that, but it's not open at all right

 2   now.

 3                  MR. WILSON:   Are you sure about

 4   that?   This whole rule is up before --

 5                  MR. KILPATRICK:   The

 6   advertisement says what's being considered

 7   for approval, and people affected by open

 8   burning have not been noticed, that's a

 9   fact.   I'm not a lawyer, but I just read it

10   and say, hey, it doesn't say to me that

11   open burning and things like that are

12   subject to discussion.

13            Fire training and one other subject

14   in Section 9 are the only things that were

15   noticed.

16                  MR. TERRILL:   And we would need

17   to do that anyway, because for every person

18   that thinks it's a great idea, you're going

19   to have a neighbor or two that thinks it's

20   not such a good idea because that smoke

21   blows right into my backyard, and that's

22   the whole purpose of this.   I mean, it's

23   not the fact that we want to keep people

24   from, you know, clearing their yard and not

25   going to a landfill, it's the fact that it
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 1   does create a nuisance for folks that are

 2   susceptible to it.   And that's really the

 3   only time that we ever really get involved

 4   with this issue anyway.   We don't go out

 5   and look for it, we've got plenty of better

 6   things to do.   But we do get complaints

 7   from folks that are -- that don't want it. 

 8   That's when we investigate.

 9             But we can take this issue up, it's

10   just not open.   We don't believe it's open

11   at this point.

12                  MR. DYKE:   Additional questions

13   from the Council?   Joel?

14                  MR. WILSON:   I have no other

15   questions.

16                  MR. DYKE:   Anybody else wishing

17   to speak on this rule?   The staff

18   recommends it be continued?

19                  MS. SULLIVAN:   Yes, sir.

20                  MR. DYKE:   Madame Chair.

21                  MS. MYERS:   If there's no

22   additional comments or questions addressed

23   to this part of the rule, then I'd

24   entertain a motion.

25                  MR. KILPATRICK:   I'll so move
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 1   that we continue this to the next meeting.

 2                  MR. BRANECKY:   Second.

 3                  MS. MYERS:   We have a motion and

 4   a second.   Myrna.

 5                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Branecky.

 6                  MR. BRANECKY:   Yes.

 7                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Wilson.

 8                  MR. WILSON:   Yes.

 9                  MS. BRUCE:   Dr. Lynch.

10                  DR. LYNCH:   Yes.

11                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Breisch.

12                  MR. BREISCH:   Yes.

13                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Kilpatrick.

14                  MR. KILPATRICK:   Yes.

15                  MS. BRUCE:   Ms. Myers.

16                  MS. MYERS:   Yes.

17                  (Item No. 4A Concluded)

18

19

20

21

22

23

24
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 1

 2                    C E R T I F I C A T E
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 4   COUNTY OF OKLAHOMA    )

 5             I, CHRISTY A. MYERS, Certified

 6   Shorthand Reporter in and for the State of

 7   Oklahoma, do hereby certify that the above

 8   witness was duly sworn to testify the

 9   truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the

10   truth, in the case aforesaid; that the

11   foregoing proceedings were taken by me in
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13   my direction; that said proceedings were
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 1

 2                           PROCEEDINGS

 3                         (Item No. 4B)

 4                  MR. DYKE:   Next item on the

 5   Agenda is Item 4B, OAC 252:100-7, Permits

 6   for Minor Facilities.   I call on Dr. Joyce

 7   Sheedy.

 8                  DR. SHEEDY:   Madame Chairman,

 9   ladies and gentlemen, Members of the

10   Council, the Department proposes to

11   establish a new permit exempt facility

12   category to replace the existing permit by

13   rule category.   The Department feels that

14   this will reduce the time staff spends on

15   permits for minor facilities, without

16   appreciably lessening the control of air

17   pollutant emissions.   The proposed change

18   will also provide relief for owners and

19   operators of some minor facilities that

20   will no longer be required to obtain

21   permits.

22             This proposed revision is similar to

23   the proposed revision presented to the

24   Council in April, 2001, and it sets up a

25   permit exempt facility category for
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 1   facilities with actual emissions of less

 2   than forty tons per year of each air

 3   pollutant emitted, and potential emissions

 4   less than the trigger levels for PSD and

 5   Title V.

 6             Facilities that qualify for this

 7   category will not be required to obtain an

 8   air quality permit, will not be required to

 9   pay an annual operating fee, and will only

10   have to submit an emission inventory once

11   every three years.   These facilities will,

12   however, remain subject to all other

13   applicable state and federal air quality

14   rules and regulations.   

15             At this point, I'm going to ask Max

16   Price to present the data that we have used

17   to determine that we should do this.   So,

18   Max, if you would.

19                  MR. PRICE:   Thank you, Joyce.

20   Madame Chairman, Members of the Council,

21   ladies and gentlemen, we did a -- actually

22   we've done several of these, but we've done

23   a study of our emissions inventory to

24   determine exactly which sources would be

25   impacted by this rule, and what impact this
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 1   rule could have as far as emissions.   And

 2   if you ladies and gentlemen haven't gotten

 3   one of these, they're over here.   But this

 4   is a summary of the data we have.

 5             I have to apologize for this.   This

 6   started out to be a slide presentation, but

 7   technical difficulties -- mainly I couldn't

 8   find it -- forced me to make a paper

 9   rendition of this.

10             At the first page of the handout you

11   have, the Facility Profile, all this data

12   is based on the year-of-record of our

13   inventory of 1999.   And the point we want

14   to make here   is, we kind of developed two

15   categories of sources in the state over the

16   years.   We have what I call Part 70

17   sources, which include sources that have to

18   get a Title V permit, a PSD permit, or have

19   to get a Synthetic Minor permit in order to

20   avoid having to get a Title V permit, and

21   then all the records, which we consider to

22   be true minor sources.

23             If you look at all the sources that

24   report to us in our inventory, only thirty-

25   four percent of those are Part 70 sources. 
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 1   The balance, two-thirds, are what we call

 2   true minor facilities.   If you break those

 3   down and look at them, and look at those

 4   sources that emit forty tons or less each

 5   year, then fifty-seven percent of the

 6   sources in Oklahoma in our system would

 7   fall under that category.   So fifty-seven

 8   percent of our facilities could, if this

 9   rule was carried out, might have to apply

10   for a permit.

11             The first sheet of this contains the

12   actual tonnage from these facilities, and

13   I'm not going to go into that very well

14   right yet, I'll give you some results in

15   just a moment.   But just to give you a

16   breakdown on what -- the actual emissions

17   are that we're talking about from these

18   facilities.   The Gross Emission Profile

19   from those minor facilities, ninety-three

20   percent of all the emissions -- the gross

21   emissions, this includes all of reported

22   pollutants, are from the Part 70

23   facilities.   Only three percent are from

24   the minor facilities that emit forty tons

25   or less per year.
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 1             Fees are always an important thing

 2   on this, so we looked at the feeable

 3   emissions.   Of course, everyone realizes

 4   that our feeable emissions are different

 5   than our gross emissions.   We don't fee for

 6   a CO and Total Particulate Matter, and we

 7   also don't fee for any emissions above four

 8   thousand tons on a single pollute; I

 9   believe that's correct.

10             And if you look at this, again, the

11   forty tons per year or less facilities pay

12   three percent of the fees, which is

13   expected, this makes perfect sense.   So

14   that's what we're talking about.   Any

15   questions?

16                  MR. DYKE:   Questions of the

17   Council of Max?

18                  MR. BRANECKY:   I had a couple of

19   questions.   How much of an increase in

20   emissions to the environment do we

21   anticipate, if any, from not permitting any

22   of these facilities?

23                  MR. TERRILL:   I don't see how

24   there could be any, because all we're doing

25   is feeing and permitting, and that's it.
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 1                  MR. BRANECKY:   So then why do we

 2   have to demonstrate to the EPA that it

 3   won't have an impact on the NAAQS?

 4                  MR. TERRILL:   That's a good

 5   question.   That's just what they -- we

 6   haven't heard back from them yet on this

 7   particular rule change, so we're hoping

 8   that by just compiling a list of the

 9   emissions that are affected and number of

10   facilities and that sort of thing, that may

11   be enough of a demonstration.   We're not

12   sure what they're going to require yet.

13             In some instances, we understand

14   that they have required modeling

15   demonstrations to prove the obvious, but

16   we're hoping that we don't have to do that. 

17   We put that in there because that's what we

18   were told when we brought this up initially

19   with them a couple of years ago, that we

20   would have to do some sort of a

21   demonstration, but they didn't know what

22   that would entail yet.   So that's kind of a

23   generic term, and it could be that we've

24   already got it done.   That's our hope,

25   anyway.   But they did not comment back on

                                                   Christy A. Myers            

                                                                                     Certified Shorthand Reporter

                                                                   9

 1   this rule, probably because they knew we

 2   weren't going to pass it at this time,

 3   we're going to continue it.

 4                  MR. BRANECKY:   How much -- and

 5   you may have told me this at the last

 6   meeting, but how much income will you

 7   anticipate that we'll lose from not

 8   permitting these facilities?

 9                  MR. TERRILL:   A couple hundred

10   thousand, I think, isn't it? 

11                  MR. PRICE:   Yes, it works out to

12   about nine thousand tons we don't normally

13   (inaudible) on.

14                  MR. BRANECKY:   And where are you

15   going to make up that extra two hundred

16   thousand from, in a time of budget

17   shortfall?

18                  MR. TERRILL:   Well, hopefully

19   we'll make it up in not having to do the

20   work, and we'll just -- we think that it's

21   worth it, we'll just figure out where it's

22   going to come from.   I don't think we'll

23   ask for a fee increase to pay for this part

24   of it, we don't anticipate doing that.

25                  MR. BRANECKY:   Okay.   I had one
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 1   other question specific to the language in

 2   the rule.   Is that this the time to do

 3   that?

 4                  MR. DYKE:   Dr. Sheedy is going to

 5   finish.

 6                  MR. BRANECKY:   Now is not the

 7   time to do that?

 8                  DR. SHEEDY:   Let me finish my

 9   presentation.

10                  MR. BRANECKY:   Okay.   Thank you.

11                  DR. SHEEDY:   Thank you, Max, for

12   presenting the data.   Currently, permit by

13   rule allows minor facilities that meet

14   certain criteria to register under a permit

15   by rule instead of obtaining an individual

16   permit.   These facilities remain subject to

17   all applicable air quality rules, and are

18   required to pay an annual operating fee and

19   submit an annual emission inventory.   The

20   permit by rule option would be replaced by

21   the permit exempt facility category.   A

22   permit exempt facility is defined as a

23   facility that has actual emissions less

24   than forty tons a year of each regulated

25   air pollutant, is not a de minimis
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 1   facility, is not a major source for Title

 2   V, is not a major source of PSD, is not

 3   located in a nonattainment or a former

 4   nonattainment area, is not subject to NSPS

 5   or NESHAP, and is not operated in

 6   conjunction with another facility or source

 7   that is subject to air quality permitting.

 8             In order to accomplish the addition

 9   of a permit exempt facility category,

10   changes are necessary to Sections 5-2.1 and

11   5-2.2 of Subchapter 5 dealing with

12   registration, emission inventory and annual

13   operating fees.   Section 7-1.1, 7-2, 7-3,

14   7-15, 7-18, 7-60, 7-60.1, 60.2, 60.3 and

15   60.4 of Subchapter 7, Permits for Minor

16   Facilities.   And Section 13 of Subchapter

17   19, which controls particulate matter. 

18   Section 7 of Subchapter 23, with the

19   control of emissions from cotton gins. 

20   Section 7 of Subchapter 24, for the control

21   of particulate matter emissions from grain,

22   feed or seed operations, and Sections 41

23   and 42 of Subchapter 37, which controls

24   emissions of VOC compounds.   

25             The Department also proposes to
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 1   evoke Appendix L, which is PM-10 factors

 2   for permit by rule for grain elevators.   At

 3   the same time, we are proposing some non-

 4   substative formatting changes for

 5   uniformity, and language changes for

 6   clarity to some of the Sections in

 7   Subchapters 5 and 7 that are being opened

 8   for the permit exempt facility revision.

 9             Because this rulemaking increases

10   the threshhold for requiring a permit, as

11   Eddie said earlier, it is anticipated that

12   EPA will require a demonstration that the

13   proposed revision won't violate any

14   applicable portions of our control

15   strategy, or interfere with the attainment

16   or the maintenance of NAAQS.   If sufficient

17   interest is shown, the Department plans to

18   set up a work group to study the proposed

19   revision, and anyone who is interested in

20   being part of this work group should

21   contact me by email or can call me at 405-

22   794-6800. 

23             Unless requested to do so, I won't

24   go through each proposed change at this

25   time, since we're not going to request the
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 1   Council to recommend the proposed revisions

 2   go to the Board for adoption it as a

 3   permanent rule since this is the first time

 4   that this proposed revision has been

 5   brought to the Council, staff requests that

 6   the Council continue this hearing until the

 7   July, 2003 Council Meeting.

 8             Thank you.

 9                  MR. DYKE:   I have notice that

10   several people want to speak on the rule,

11   but let's start with questions for Joyce

12   first.

13                  MR. BRANECKY:   Joyce, under

14   Subchapter 5, the revision under Emission

15   Inventory, paragraph 2, you talk about

16   requiring these facilities to only submit

17   emission inventories once every three

18   years.

19                  DR. SHEEDY:   Yes.

20                  MR. BRANECKY:   Is it the intent

21   that all facilities are on the same

22   schedule, every three years?

23                  DR. SHEEDY:   Yes.

24                  MR. BRANECKY:   But in theory, I

25   guess, if somebody came online, and their
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 1   first full year of operation was 2007,

 2   they'd have to submit one for 2007 and then

 3   turn around and submit one the following

 4   year for 2008 if they're going to get on

 5   the same schedule?

 6                  DR. SHEEDY:   Yes, that's the way

 7   it's written at this point, because I think

 8   we want them all submitted on the same

 9   schedule so that we can just have a -- so

10   that we can see everything in the state at

11   least every three years, you know, all the

12   minors included.

13                  MR. DYKE:   Yes, Nadine.

14                  MR. BARTON:   I have a question. 

15   Do we have staff to cover all of this

16   evaluation every three years at the same

17   time?

18                  DR. SHEEDY:   Well, theoretically

19   we're covering it now.

20                  MR. TERRILL:   Every year.

21                  DR. SHEEDY:   Every year.   I think

22   these are -- we're talking about sources

23   that are -- at least our data is based on

24   sources that are on our inventory now.

25                  MR. TERRILL:   But that is a good
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 1   point, because we anticipate that this may

 2   bring in some folks into the fold that,

 3   heretofore, haven't been in the fold,

 4   because that's our whole goal here is to

 5   get a better inventory that's more

 6   reflective of what's actually out there,

 7   especially in the rural counties.   And

 8   we're hoping by lessening this burden,

 9   we'll entice those folks to at least give

10   us some idea of what's out there for

11   emissions inventory purposes for analysis

12   and other things that we need it for.   So

13   there may be, even though we're not going

14   to be permitting these facilities, once

15   every three years there may be a

16   significant burden on the emissions

17   inventory staff.   But we feel like that's

18   worth it, became we'll make it up in other

19   times of the year.

20                  MR. DYKE:   And we're moving that

21   process to electronic process as much as

22   possible, too, and that ought to help.

23                  MR. WILSON:   I have a question. 

24   Max, this may go back to your presentation.

25                  MR. PRICE:   Yes, sir.
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 1                  MR. WILSON:   That is, fifty-seven

 2   percent of all facilities in this state

 3   emit forty tons per year or less --

 4                  MR. PRICE:   Yes, sir.

 5                  MR. WILSON:   Of those fifty-seven

 6   percent, how many would be permit exempt

 7   facilities?

 8                  MR. PRICE:   Well, there are

 9   several things I didn't take into account

10   when I did this, at this point in time,

11   because like I said, it's going to the

12   committee.   One, I didn't take into account

13   their location, so Tulsa County is a

14   nonattainment -- an Oklahoma nonattainment

15   area.   No facility in Tulsa would be a part

16   of that.

17             Also, I didn't take into account

18   whether there's an NSPS or another rule

19   that applied to it, because I didn't have

20   the data, I couldn't have done that.   But

21   if you were looking at this, and my gut

22   feeling -- it is a gut feeling because I

23   haven't done all of the analysis yet, would

24   be about six hundred sources that currently

25   are permitted would probably be qualified
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 1   for permit exempt status.

 2                  MR. WILSON:   Okay.

 3                  MR. BRANECKY:   So does it say

 4   somewhere in the rule revisions that Tulsa

 5   County -- facilities in Tulsa County are

 6   not available for this?

 7                  DR. SHEEDY:   It's in the

 8   definition of de minimis -- not de minimis,

 9   permanent exempt facility, I believe. 

10   Wherever it is -- Chapter 7.

11                  MR. BRANECKY:   Okay, I see it, G.

12                  MR. DYKE:   We have a question

13   right up here.   

14                  MR. MOYER:   Steve Moyer, with

15   Sinclair Oil.   I guess you answered part of

16   that.   I was concerned about the EAC and

17   whether or not getting the data every three

18   years would impact anything with the

19   modeling we would need to be doing.   Now

20   Tulsa is exempt, but does that include

21   Oklahoma City, and what they're going to

22   have to be going through, are there any

23   impacts there that need to be considered?

24                  MR. TERRILL:   Tulsa -- Oklahoma

25   City wouldn't be included here even though
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 1   they have been nonattainable for CO, I

 2   don't think.

 3                  DR. SHEEDY:   I'm not sure they

 4   were ever officially.

 5                  MR. BRANECKY:   It just says

 6   former nonattainment areas.   It doesn't say

 7   nonattainment for what. 

 8                  MR. TERRILL:   So Oklahoma City

 9   may be included.   You know, we don't get a

10   good inventory now, so I don't know that

11   it's going to really impact what we're

12   doing at this point.   The modeling that

13   we're doing for the EAC is rough modeling,

14   I guess is a good way to put it, because

15   we're not being required to look at the

16   three different episodes and all the other

17   things you normally have to do.   And so I'm

18   not -- I don't think it's going to be that

19   big a deal.   I don't think it will make

20   that big of a difference in the Tulsa

21   modeling effort, because I think we're

22   getting the vast majority of the sources.

23             What this will really help is in the

24   rural areas where we don't have a good

25   inventory and we think that there's
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 1   probably quite a bit of contribution from a

 2   lot of small sources within those areas. 

 3   So I really don't think it's going to

 4   impact the EAC efforts at all, to any

 5   appreciable degree anyway.

 6                  MR. BREISCH:   Well, Eddie, what

 7   is the overriding reason that you want to

 8   do this?   Is it in order to get a better

 9   handle on emission inventory, or is it the

10   workload?

11                  MR. TERRILL:   Both.   It's

12   actually both.   What we're really -- to

13   tell you the truth what we're really

14   looking at exempting is the small oil and

15   gas sources, because there's just God-knows

16   how many of them out there, hundreds,

17   thousands of them out there.   And we just

18   don't have the resources to go out and try

19   to figure out where they are and what their

20   emissions are and get them permitted, and

21   it's a waste of our time to do that, and

22   it's a waste of their time to have to deal

23   with us.   But we do think it's an important

24   trade-off to have some kind of mechanism

25   where we do have an emissions inventory
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 1   that we're able to compile at least on a

 2   once every three or four -- whatever it

 3   happens to be at the end of the day when

 4   this rule is finalized, basis.   But it's

 5   not fair just to exempt those sources. 

 6   There are other minor sources out there

 7   that we require to get permits now, too. 

 8   And if we're going to permit one sector, we

 9   need to do it for all sectors.

10             So it's designed to help us entice

11   those folks to provide us better data for

12   our inventory, which we need, but not every

13   year, which we don't need, and then lessen

14   our workload and level the playing field,

15   if you will, for those sources that are in

16   the fold at forty tons or less with a

17   permit, and those that aren't.   So it's

18   both.   It's a fairness issue, too, I think.

19                  MR. WILSON:   What would the harm

20   be in removing the language under G where a

21   permit exempt, and then therefore allow a

22   permit exempt facility to be located in a

23   nonattainment area or former nonattainment

24   area?

25                  MR. TERRILL:   That's an EPA issue
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 1   relative to the specs, if I'm not mistaken.

 2                  DR. SHEEDY:   I think that's part

 3   of it, but let me see if my memory will

 4   function.   Pam, do you remember when we

 5   talked about this?

 6                  MS. DIZIKES:   I believe this was

 7   a conservative approach to meet possible

 8   objects from EPA, something we can verify,

 9   following the meeting.

10                  MR. TERRILL:   Yeah, that's

11   something that the work group could work

12   out.   And this is just a starting point.   I

13   have no idea what the work group is going

14   to bring back to you as a final product,

15   but that's certainly something we could

16   look at.   I'm not sure -- because if you

17   think about it, if we know what's there,

18   what difference does it make whether it's

19   permitted or not?

20                  DR. SHEEDY:   This came up because

21   the Tulsa office was concerned about

22   aerospace.

23                  MR. TERRILL:   (Inaudible).

24                  DR. SHEEDY:   Uh-huh.   And there

25   may be another way of handling that.

                                                   Christy A. Myers            

                                                                                     Certified Shorthand Reporter

                                                                  22

 1                  MR. TERRILL:   (Inaudible).   But

 2   that's certain.   I think anything is fair

 3   game as far as what they want to discuss

 4   and what we end up bringing back.   This is

 5   our first cut at it.   And I think a lot of

 6   it is going to be predicated on what EPA's

 7   comments are, because at the end of the day

 8   we've got to make this a part of our SIP

 9   change, and it'll have to be approved by

10   them, but this is a start. 

11                  DR. LYNCH:   I've got, Max, a

12   question for you.   This table here, I'm

13   trying to understand it.   In tons per year

14   for different facilities, is that table

15   range so that it's zero to five, five to

16   ten, ten to twenty, or --

17                  MR. PRICE:   The far left column?

18                  DR. LYNCH:   Yeah.

19                  MR. PRICE:   Okay, those are

20   sources that emit less than five tons per

21   year.   The next one down would be less than

22   or equal to ten tons per year.   That's the

23   cutoff for those rules.

24                  DR. LYNCH:   All right.   So

25   shouldn't less than forty add up to the
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 1   numbers above it?

 2                  MR. PRICE:   It's supposed to.   It

 3   doesn't?

 4                  DR. SHEEDY:   Max, the less than

 5   five tons would be de minimis facilities,

 6   so you may not have added those.

 7                  MR. PRICE:   Well, they have a

 8   number.   The computer did this.   I hope it

 9   did it right.   You mean they don't add up?

10                  MR. MOYER:   No.   It's supposed to

11   be zero to five -- zero to five, and then

12   zero to ten, and then zero to fifteen.

13                  MR. PRICE:   Right, right.

14                  MR. MOYER:   So they won't add up,

15   because it will be inclusive.   

16                (Inaudible conversations)

17                  MR. PRICE:   Yeah, that's right. 

18   Thank you.   Thank you very much.   I knew I

19   wrote the program right, but I couldn't

20   explain what I did.   Yes, it's an inclusive

21   number.

22                  DR. LYNCH:   Okay. thanks.

23                  MR. DYKE:   Questions from the

24   Council?   Are there any questions of Dr.

25   Sheedy from the public?
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 1             We have people that wish to speak. 

 2   Angie Burckhalter.

 3                  MS. BURCKHALTER:   My name is

 4   Angie Burckhalter, and I represent the

 5   Oklahoma Independent Petroleum Association,

 6   and I just have a few comments today on

 7   this.   We do support raising the de minimis

 8   level, and also we are very supportive of

 9   Eddie and his staff to form a working

10   group, to look at this and allow industry

11   to provide input.   So we are very

12   supportive of this and look forward to

13   working with Eddie and his staff.   Thank

14   you.

15                  MR. DYKE:   Questions?   Any

16   questions?

17                  MS. MYERS:   I'm curious, for the

18   group that you represent, how many

19   facilities could be impacted by this?

20                  MS. BURCKHALTER:   Boy, I tell

21   you, I don't have a good answer for you on

22   that one at this point in time.   I know a

23   lot of our members would probably fall in

24   to this, so I'm sure it would impact a

25   large majority, because the level of
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 1   applicities right now, the five tons,

 2   pretty much would pull almost every

 3   compressor into that scenario.   So to give

 4   you a real number, I can't tell you, but I

 5   would estimate that it would be a very

 6   large number.   

 7                  MR. DYKE:   Any other questions of

 8   Ms. Burckhalter?   Mark Dalton.

 9                  MR. DALTON:   I think you can

10   probably hear me from here.   I'm Mark

11   Dalton.   I'm the Environmental Manager for

12   Samson.   And we, too, are supportive of

13   this action by the staff, and we applaud

14   the staff for taking this action.   I can

15   tell you that, as an independent operator,

16   we have a whole bunch of very small

17   compressors around the country.   The

18   problem is, just for people who don't know

19   our industry, those compressors can be

20   moved in and out of a field, or on and off

21   of a well in a very short period of time. 

22   And it's very, very difficult for us to

23   keep up with the permitting necessary to do

24   that.   It's almost impossible.   And for

25   small, small operators, it just isn't going
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 1   to happen.

 2             So we definitely applaud the staff's

 3   action on this, and we look forward to

 4   working in a working group setting.   We

 5   think this is a great first start.

 6             Thank you.

 7                  MR. WILSON:   I have a question

 8   for Mr. Dalton.   What is the NSPS --

 9                  MR. DALTON:   New Source

10   Performance Standard?

11                  MR. WILSON:   -- for compressors? 

12   Is there one?

13                  MR. DALTON:   Yeah, it's for

14   larger compressors, and I believe they're

15   talking about formaldehyde, and I'm not

16   sure that that's come into effect yet.   But

17   if it hasn't, it's going to this summer,

18   yeah.

19                  MR. WILSON:   So it would impact

20   the larger -- not the smaller ones you're

21   talking about.

22                  MR. DALTON:   That's right.

23                  MR. WILSON:   Okay.   That's all. 

24   Thank you.

25                  MR. DALTON:   And there's been a
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 1   change that's going on in the industry that

 2   really makes this necessary now.   In the

 3   past, companies used to have to boost their

 4   gas to high pressures in order to get into

 5   pipelines.   And now there are many low-

 6   pressure pipelines throughout the state. 

 7   So therefore, we don't need the hugh

 8   horsepower that we used to need in order to

 9   market our products.   But as a result, now

10   we've got these little, very small

11   compressors that come under the existing

12   rules.   So we agree with staff that it

13   probably isn't a real good use of staff's

14   resources.   And on the emission inventory

15   thing, I'd just like to comment that I

16   think that the lady back in the back had a

17   good point, that there may be a way on a

18   rolling basis to do the emission

19   inventories, such that it's -- there's a

20   more even work flow for staff.   It's just

21   something to think about.   But those are

22   the kinds of things that we can talk about

23   in a work group setting.

24                  MR. TERRILL:   That would be one

25   of the things that we would be most
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 1   interested in, is how we can do that so

 2   that we don't impact your operation, but we

 3   do still get the data on a periodic basis. 

 4   So that's definitely a big part of it for

 5   us, anyway.

 6                  MR. DYKE:   Any additional

 7   questions of Mr. Dalton?   

 8             Don Whitney.

 9                  MR. WHITNEY:   Yes, I'm Don

10   Whitney with Trinity Consultants, and I'd

11   also like to say that we think that raising

12   the de minimis level from five to forty

13   tons per year would be a very helpful thing

14   for industry as well as the staff to

15   manage. 

16             I'd just like to offer a few other

17   comments.   The exemption that's in the

18   draft rule here for nonattainment and

19   former nonattainment areas, I think that it

20   still, maybe, is a debatable point.   But

21   the one clarification I would recommend is

22   that there's, for quite awhile, been some

23   uncertainty about, well, is Tulsa really in

24   that, is Oklahoma City really in that?   And

25   obviously, the intent is for these areas
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 1   that are close to the ambient air standards

 2   to have, I believe, a closer look or a

 3   little tighter inventory measure of the

 4   facilities there that are emitting.   But

 5   what I would suggest is, if the staff

 6   decides to include that kind of exemption,

 7   then it should be -- just make it crystal

 8   clear and say Tulsa, Oklahoma County, and

 9   maybe any other areas that do become

10   nonattainment.   But those two counties, if

11   we want to be clear about the rule and save

12   discussion and agonizing interpretations

13   later on, is if you mean those two

14   counties, let's say that.

15             I have another couple of questions

16   about the transition from the general

17   permit, or the (inaudible, due to cough)

18   the permit by rule, to the new permit

19   exempt area, and I wonder if there's been

20   any planning yet for that kind of

21   transition.   The current facilities that

22   have a permit by rule, is there a mechanism

23   to go over to this new system yet?

24                  DR. SHEEDY:   Don, when I have

25   checked -- excuse me, let me get rid of
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 1   this -- when I have checked with the person

 2   who keeps track of the people that have --

 3   the facilities that are under PBR's.

 4                  MR. WHITNEY:   Yes.

 5                  DR. SHEEDY:   Either there was one

 6   or none that had registered, that we had

 7   any record of.                     

 8                  MR. WHITNEY:   Of VOC storage

 9   tanks, of cotton gins --

10                  DR. SHEEDY:   It should have been

11   for any one of them.

12                  MR. WHITNEY:   -- or the third one

13   is --

14                  DR. SHEEDY:   Well, there are VOC

15   storage, particulate matter, feed and grain

16   --

17                  MR. WHITNEY:   Feed and grain and

18   cotton gins those three.

19                  DR. SHEEDY:   Cotton gins, yeah.

20                  MR. WHITNEY:   That's one of the

21   details about the implementation of this

22   that I would hope that can come along

23   pretty fast, maybe in parallel with the

24   rule here, so that we have an idea of the

25   mechanism of what it's going to take to get
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 1   there.   What kind of registration is going

 2   to be required to become a permit exempt

 3   facility?   Hopefully, it's going to be a

 4   matter of, you know, one or two pages of an

 5   application, and not a very long detailed

 6   process, essentially equivalent to a minor

 7   permit.

 8                  DR. SHEEDY:   It doesn't seem it

 9   would be very useful to have to get a

10   permit, not to get a permit.   So this is

11   one of the things that we hope the work

12   group will discuss with us.

13                  MR. WHITNEY:   That's why we would

14   encourage this is the work group should

15   address that transition of how do we get

16   there at the same time and not just create

17   a rule and then, somehow, figure out how

18   are we going to implement it.   So thank you

19   for that consideration.

20                  MR. DYKE:   Any questions of Don

21   from the Council?   From the public?   Are

22   there -- is there anyone else that wants to

23   speak on this matter today?   Jay, please

24   identify yourself.

25                  MR. EUBANKS:   Yeah.   I'm Jay
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 1   Eubanks, and I'm with Mid-Continent Oil and

 2   Gas Association.   I just want to support

 3   what Angie and Mark had said.   You know,

 4   there's a lot of sources in Oklahoma that

 5   are small de minimis sources like this that

 6   this is addressing and making a good --

 7   making it better for the oil industry to

 8   operate.   And we will support and work with

 9   the industry on the working group.

10                  MR. DYKE:   Thank you.   Any

11   further questions?   Anyone else wanting to

12   speak on this rule today?

13                  MR. TERRILL:   I've just got one

14   comment about the work group, and this is

15   kind of directed to the OIPA MOGA folks. 

16   It's been our experience that on these work

17   groups, the smaller the group the better. 

18   So if you all could get a representative

19   sample of the folks that you represent, and

20   not have everybody try to be there, because

21   if you do, you're not going to make any

22   progress.   But you do need to make sure

23   that as much of your membership as possible

24   knows about this and has an opportunity to

25   get feedback to your representatives. 
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 1             So it's just -- we really don't try

 2   to tell these work groups how to organize

 3   themselves.   It's kind of up to them.   But

 4   since you guys have got so many members,

 5   it's going to be very difficult to do that,

 6   so we'll be kind of working with you as we

 7   get folks that are registering.   But we're

 8   going to depend on you all to get the word

 9   out and that kind of thing.   I appreciate

10   your efforts.

11                  MR. PADEN:   Yes, David.   Lee

12   Paden, ODEQ Board.   In summing what Mr.

13   Whitney pointed out on nonattainment area

14   issue, there is a concern about Tulsa

15   County and a concern about Oklahoma County. 

16   But those nonattainment areas are not just

17   those counties, they are adjacent counties. 

18   And so we have to be concerned about

19   transport from an adjacent county into

20   Tulsa County or to Oklahoma County.   So I

21   just wanted to point that out as you start

22   working on that issue, because I think it's

23   very important that we try to maintain some

24   semblance of control, to make sure those

25   areas don't go into nonattainment again.
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 1                  MR. DYKE:   Thank you.   Anything

 2   further? 

 3             The staff recommends a work group be

 4   put together and this matter be continued.   

 5   Madame Chair. 

 6                  MS. MYERS:   If there are no

 7   additional comments or questions, I'd

 8   entertain a motion.

 9                  MR. BRANECKY:   Is there a

10   schedule, a meeting for this?

11                  MR. TERRILL:   No, I don't think

12   so.

13                  MR. BRANECKY:   Whenever it gets

14   done, it gets done.

15                  MR. TERRILL:   Yes, because I

16   could tell you better if I knew what EPA's

17   comments were going to be.   I'm going to be

18   talking to them in the next week, or next

19   few days, and try to encourage them to get

20   those comments to us as quickly as

21   possible.   But I anticipate that we'll come

22   back to the Council in June or July,

23   whenever our next meeting is, with one more

24   presentation, with the idea of passing it

25   at the next one.   I think it will take two
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 1   more Council meetings, unless we run into

 2   some big road block, but I think six months

 3   is plenty of time to look at this.   So I

 4   would hope that, unless EPA comes back with

 5   something that is totally unreasonable,

 6   that we can get this done in a couple more

 7   Council meetings.   But I also would like to

 8   wait until the end of the Legislative

 9   Session too, and figure if there's anything

10   that we hadn't thought about that gets

11   thrown in the mix with that, but I don't

12   think that's going to happen.

13                  MS. MYERS:   Now can I entertain a

14   motion?   

15                  MR. DYKE:   Yes.

16                  MS. MYERS:   I'll entertain a

17   motion on this rule, please.

18                  MR. BREISCH:   I move.

19                  MS. MYERS:   We have a motion. 

20   Anybody second?

21                  DR. LYNCH:   Second.

22                  MS. MYERS:   Myrna.

23                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Branecky.

24                  MR. BRANECKY:   Yes.

25                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Wilson.
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 1                  MR. WILSON:   Yes.

 2                  MS. BRUCE:   Dr. Lynch.

 3                  DR. LYNCH:   Yes.

 4                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Breisch.

 5                  MR. BREISCH:   Yes.

 6                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Kilpatrick.

 7                  MR. KILPATRICK:   Yes.

 8                  MS. BRUCE:   Ms. Myers.

 9                  MS. MYERS:   Yes.   

10                    (End of Item No. 4B)

11                    (End of Proceedings)

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

                                                   Christy A. Myers            

                                                                                     Certified Shorthand Reporter

                                                                  37

 1     

 2                    C E R T I F I C A T E

 3   STATE OF OKLAHOMA     )
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 4   COUNTY OF OKLAHOMA    )

 5             I, CHRISTY A. MYERS, Certified

 6   Shorthand Reporter in and for the State of

 7   Oklahoma, do hereby certify that the above

 8   proceedings is the truth, the whole truth,

 9   and nothing but the truth; that the

10   foregoing proceedings were taken in
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12   under my direction; that said proceedings
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19   set my hand and official seal on this, the
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 1

 2                           PROCEEDINGS

 3                    (Agenda Item No. 4C)

 4

 5                  MR. DYKE:   Next item on the

 6   agenda is Item 4C, OAC 252:100-5.

 7   Registration, Emission Inventory and Annual

 8   Operating Fees.   Dr. Sheedy.

 9                  DR. SHEEDY:   Madame Chairman,

10   Members of the Council, ladies and

11   gentlemen, the Department is proposing a

12   revision to OAC 252:100-5-2.2(b)(1)(C) and

13   (b)(2)(D), that will increase annual fees

14   for both minor facilities and Part 70

15   sources, from twenty-two dollars and

16   twenty-eight cents, to twenty-eight dollars

17   and sixty-three cents per ton of air

18   pollutant emitted.   At the same time, we

19   are proposing to clean up Subsection 5-

20   2.2(b) by deleting historical minor

21   facility annual fees, in 5-2.2(b)(1)(A) and

22   (B), since these fees are no longer used. 

23   The amount of the proposed increase is

24   based on raising an additional one point

25   five million dollars.   Unfortunately, there
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 1   was a mistake in the amount proposed in the

 2   revision.   It should be twenty-seven

 3   dollars and seventy-eight cents per ton of

 4   air pollutants emitted.   And since this is

 5   the first time this proposed revision has

 6   been brought to the Council, staff requests

 7   that the Council continue this hearing

 8   until the July, 2003 Council Meeting.   

 9                  MR. TERRILL:   Let me -- I may be

10   able to answer a lot of questions before

11   you ask them.   I know there's a bunch of

12   questions here, and hope that some of you

13   folks hang out because of this, because

14   we're going to ask for your support.

15             As you're aware, those of you who

16   have been coming to the Council meetings,

17   last year the Council directed us to go to

18   the Board and ask for their concurrence to

19   seek a mobile source fee, which we've done,

20   and which the DEQ Board supported.   And

21   we've been in the process this entire

22   legislative session, of trying to get an

23   interest in an increase in car tag fees to

24   pay for -- actually, it would do two

25   things.   It would pay for work that we see
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 1   that's coming and that's already here in

 2   some areas with the EAC work involving

 3   inventory and modeling and planning and a

 4   lot of things that are -- we just have

 5   traditionally have not had to worry about,

 6   and also to relieve the burden on our Title

 7   V fee payers.   

 8             And you may ask, well, why did you

 9   come back and propose a Title V fee

10   increase?   Well, the reason is, when we

11   made this presentation, one of the

12   alternatives that the governor came back

13   with in his budget proposal was to raise

14   fees on all sectors within DEQ by eight

15   percent, because they believe -- I guess we

16   made a pretty good case to them -- they

17   believe we had a need for this money for

18   the analysis and inventory work.   And so

19   that was their proposal back.   And it's in

20   their budget, but again, it's just a

21   proposed budget.   

22             So what we tried to do was reflect

23   what could happen if that is made part of

24   either a statutory change or we're directed

25   to bring it back to you.
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 1             I have no illusion that we're going

 2   to pass this or get anywhere near this

 3   amount.   Besides that, I don't need the

 4   full amount.   This represents what we would

 5   be -- what we think would be an across-the-

 6   board fee increase, if it was directed just

 7   for us to take it back to the Council to

 8   raise their Title V fees, because the whole

 9   -- another purpose, as I stated before, was

10   to stabilize their Title V fees by raising

11   our non-Title V source of income, and this

12   wouldn't do that.   If they did eight

13   percent across-the-board, it would be for

14   everybody and, if anything, it would

15   acerbate our discrepancy between Title V

16   and non-Title V.   

17             So we just reflected that, mainly to

18   give folks an idea of what could happen,

19   but also to solicit some support at the

20   legislature, especially in the Tulsa and

21   Oklahoma City delegation, because the

22   proposal that we've brought forward is that

23   the car tag fees would be raised only in

24   the MSA's of the metropolitan areas: Tulsa,

25   Oklahoma City and Lawton.   Because that's
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 1   where the need -- the greatest need is and

 2   where the greatest amount of the mobile

 3   sources are that contributes to those

 4   metropolitan problems.

 5             The latest we've heard on that -- we

 6   made a presentation to the EFO, Steve and I

 7   did -- Steve Thompson, Executive Director,

 8   and myself made a presentation to them week

 9   before last about this need.   And according

10   to Steve, we've already got support from

11   the Tulsa delegation, and we're working on

12   the Oklahoma City folks.   So we have some

13   hope that there might be some chance that

14   we might get this fee increase on the car

15   tags, and if so, that would eliminate any

16   need for this altogether.   

17             However, depending on what happens

18   in the legislative session, if we don't get

19   anything or any mechanism -- well one of

20   two things happen.   If we are directed

21   through the final budget process to raise

22   our fees by a set amount, then we'll have

23   to come back either through rulemaking, if

24   that's how it's directed, or as an

25   informative type of presentation if it's
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 1   done by statute as to, here's what the fees

 2   are going to and here's what they'll be

 3   used for and we'll do a detailed analysis

 4   of that.   Or, if no mechanism is provided

 5   for, we'll have a much scaled back version

 6   that we'd be coming and asking you, here's

 7   what we'd be using our fee increase for,

 8   here's exactly -- it'd be a pretty detailed

 9   work plan of what we need and why we need

10   it, and we'd be asking for an increase in

11   Title V fees that would be directed solely

12   for that purpose.   And it would be the

13   first time that we've ever asked for non --

14   Title V fees to be spent for a non-Title V

15   purpose.   But it would be significantly

16   less than this, because like I said, this

17   got rolled in with all the things we asked

18   for rather than being broken out.

19             So before you get -- everybody

20   panics that we're asking for this huge

21   increase, we might not have to ask for

22   anything, and we're not going to ask for

23   anything more than we need.   And there will

24   be a detailed plan, but you all can either

25   say, yes, we agree with it or, no, we
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 1   don't.   And that's fine.   I mean, that's

 2   what you all are here for, and we'll get

 3   our direction from what you all want to do,

 4   but I think it's part of our job -- part of

 5   my job is to identify areas that we're

 6   probably going to need to work on and need

 7   to have resources for that we don't

 8   necessarily have to do, and we don't have

 9   to do any of this.

10             But I think that, for a lot of

11   reasons that we'll detail in our proposal,

12   I think it's a good idea for not only the

13   environment but also economic development

14   for our industrial sources as well.   I have

15   no illusions that we're going to get this

16   through.   But this is an indication of what

17   possibly could happen in a worse-case

18   scenario, but I'm still hopeful that there

19   are some mechanisms out there that Steve is

20   working on that will allow us to get this

21   funding from sources other than our Title V

22   fee payers.   Because I think you all were

23   very generous, and the increase we got

24   before has allowed us to expand our staff

25   and do some things that we need to do.   And
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 1   I personally think that their -- our Title

 2   V fees are where we need to be relative to

 3   the needs for Title V sources.   And this is

 4   being above-and-beyond thing that,

 5   hopefully, we won't have to come back, but

 6   if, depending on what happens with the

 7   legislature, we might.   But it will be a

 8   much more detailed proposal, and it'll be

 9   for your consideration as to whether you

10   want to fund it or not.

11             So having said that, I'll be glad to

12   answer any questions.

13                  MR. DYKE:   Let's start with

14   questions from the Council.

15                  MR. BRANECKY:   Well, it was my

16   understanding that the Title V program was

17   pretty much solved, that the fees brought

18   in from Title V sources were paying for the

19   Title V program.   So why is there a need

20   for Title V fee increase again?

21                  MR. TERRILL:   Well, what this

22   would reflect is, roughly what we thought

23   would be directed in the Governor's budget,

24   and that was an eight percent across-the-

25   board fee increase.   Now what we didn't
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 1   understand --

 2                  MR. BRANECKY:   That's only if you

 3   need one.

 4                  MR. TERRILL:   No, that would be -

 5   -

 6                  MR. BRANECKY:   It's eight percent

 7   whether you need it or not?

 8                  MR. TERRILL:   Well, but that

 9   would be -- and that's what I was talking

10   about with the scaled back version.   We do

11   think that there's a need for about seven

12   hundred and fifty thousand, give or take a

13   few dollars, to fund our ongoing modeling

14   inventory, a lot of things that we think we

15   need to develop our capability and we

16   haven't done before, and that's what this

17   would be.   The scaled back proposal would

18   direct that particular portion that we

19   never have funded before, but that was also

20   what the Governor's budget felt like we

21   needed.   If we convinced them it was a good

22   idea, that was just their way of paying for

23   it, just to raise the fee increases.   But

24   it was also for all -- all fees would be

25   raised, and that's the amount it would
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 1   generate.   It's about one and a half

 2   million.   So that's what we tried to

 3   reflect.   We thought it would just be an

 4   increase of air quality fee, but it turns

 5   out it's across-the-board.   So I just left

 6   it in there knowing that we were not going

 7   to pass this anyway.

 8             But I did want to get some

 9   discussion and try to elicit some help from

10   the industry to help us with their

11   legislators' support, the fifty cent or

12   seventy-five cent car tag increase that

13   would go to fund this, and, hopefully,

14   lower your Title V fees ultimately.

15                  MR. BRANECKY:   Well, I saw when I

16   read in either today's or yesterday's

17   Oklahoman that there's been a proposal for

18   a four dollar and fifty cent tag increase

19   to fund the Department of Public Safety

20   shortfall.

21                  MR. TERRILL:   I saw that, too.

22                  MR. BRANECKY:   So is that going

23   to put a wrench in our proposal?

24                  MR. TERRILL:   Who knows.   I mean,

25   this was always a long shot, but again, it
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 1   was something that you all thought was

 2   important, I think is important, the DEQ

 3   Board thinks is important to raise the

 4   issue with the legislature to fund the

 5   mobil source part of our problem, even

 6   through appropriations, which is not going

 7   to happen, or through some mobile source

 8   fee.   And we still are committed to try to

 9   get that in this session, but you know,

10   this is the fourth session we've tried

11   that, and this is probably the poorest time

12   of all of them, really, in economic times

13   to do it.   But, you know, the rest of the

14   country is not waiting on us to figure out

15   whether or not we want to develop the

16   resources to play in these games.   I mean,

17   the transport rule is coming, the PM 2.5

18   designations are coming, and there's a lot

19   of things that we feel like we need to

20   develop our capabilities to analyze and

21   understand and comment on that.   Like I

22   said, I'll go into a lot more detail if we

23   have to come back with a formal proposal

24   that truly is a fee increase.   But I'm

25   hopeful that we won't have to do that.
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 1             But I do need your -- those of you

 2   who have not been active in the process to

 3   -- if you feel so inclined, to contact your

 4   legislature and say you do support our

 5   efforts to try to find a mobil source.

 6                  MR. BRANECKY:   What happens if

 7   you don't get any increase?

 8                  MR. TERRILL:   Won't do the work. 

 9   We'll do what we have to do for the EAC.    

10                  MR. BRANECKY:   Will the EAC,

11   then, default?

12                  MR. TERRILL:   No, I don't think

13   so.   I think we've got enough to cover that

14   for right now, and we'll figure out some

15   way to get that done.   But that's the only

16   thing that we've committed to do.   Anything

17   else, we'll do what we can, but I'm not

18   going to divert the resources from other

19   areas to fund it.   I think it's important,

20   but I don't think it's -- it's something we

21   don't have to do.   It's just something I

22   think is important.   Like I said, if we

23   don't get anything from the -- I'll come

24   back, and even if we get something from the

25   legislature, we'll come back and do a
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 1   report on, here's the money we got, here's

 2   how we think it will impact our Title V

 3   fees, if any, and here are the things we're

 4   going to do in addition with that money. 

 5   So you all will get a pretty detailed

 6   explanation as to what we're going to do

 7   and why we're going to do it, whether or

 8   not we have to come back for a fee increase

 9   or not.   If we get anything at all, then

10   I'll detail you on what we're going to do

11   and why we're going to do it.

12                  MR. DYKE:   Mr. Paden.

13                  MR. PADEN:   Eddie, can I make a

14   comment about the Board's concern about

15   fees?

16                  MR. TERRILL:   Absolutely.

17                  MR. PADEN:   And also about the

18   budget.   The history of the department and

19   funding by the legislature goes back to the

20   inception of the department in 1993.   And

21   one of the caveats, if you'll go back and

22   look at that original legislation, that was

23   placed upon the department in its

24   consolidation was, that no additional

25   revenues were to be appropriated to bring
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 1   about the consolidation of five agencies of

 2   government under the DEQ umbrella.   Bob

 3   Kellogg was at the department at that time,

 4   and I know he remembers that well.   And so

 5   what we wound up with in 1993 was a budget

 6   of about -- a little over four million

 7   dollars, and that's directly appropriated

 8   by the legislature to the department.   I

 9   think you'll find, if you look at the

10   amount of money that was requested for

11   appropriation, that that hasn't changed a

12   whole bunch.

13             Over that ten year period, the level

14   of state appropriations for the department

15   has literally stayed flat when you take

16   into consideration inflation and other

17   things.   On the other hand, fees for air,

18   and for water, and for land applications,

19   the whole nine yards, have funded the bulk

20   of the operations of the department.   I

21   think if you'll examine the department's

22   budget, you'll find that fees and federal

23   funds fund more than sixty percent, maybe

24   even as much as seventy percent, of the

25   department's actions.
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 1             Four years ago when we started

 2   looking at having to deal with the possible

 3   nonattainment in Tulsa County, and then

 4   particular problems in Oklahoma County that

 5   are not as bad as Tulsa County, and then

 6   problems for air in Comanche County in the

 7   Lawton area, we found that we were going to

 8   have to start doing some things from the

 9   standpoint of modeling and reviewing what

10   was out there.   And we went to the

11   legislature and requested money for that

12   specific activity.   For the last four years

13   we've done that.   And the Board

14   specifically has passed an agreement among

15   themselves that they'll go to individual

16   members of the legislature that they know,

17   and work to get those kinds of things

18   funded.   And we've never had any ability to

19   get that money funded.   We've asked for as

20   little as, I think, a hundred thousand

21   dollars one year, and maybe five hundred

22   thousand dollars over that four year

23   period, to help us do that modeling and

24   help us do that work.

25             I think in Texas, they've spent
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 1   fourteen or fifteen million dollars on

 2   modeling over the last three or four years. 

 3   It may even be bigger than that, Eddie. 

 4   But just to give you an example of our

 5   request for a couple of hundred thousand to

 6   maybe five hundred thousand dollars,

 7   compared to the state of Texas, where the

 8   legislature in Texas appropriated, over a

 9   period of three or four years, fourteen or

10   fifteen million dollars to do the kinds of

11   work that they're doing down there on

12   modeling.   They have a lot more problems

13   than we do.   They have areas that are

14   actually in nonattainment, and therefore

15   the squeaking wheel is being oiled down

16   there more than it is being here.   But I

17   say all this to tell you that it's not

18   something that the Board has not been

19   concerned about.   It's not something that

20   you all haven't been concerned about.

21             But the other point I want to make

22   is, that the fee increase dollars that are

23   in the governor's budget, the way I read

24   it, is not only for air, but it's also for

25   the other divisions as well.   And what that
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 1   means is, if they impose a statutory

 2   percentage, eight percent or three percent

 3   or whatever the number is, I can almost

 4   guarantee you that the money that's

 5   appropriated is going to be reduced by that

 6   amount in order to take that money and put

 7   it in some other pocket.

 8             I've been told in the last week that

 9   the deficit number for the budget this year

10   that they're getting ready to start working

11   on, is in excess of seven hundred million

12   dollars.   And so they literally are turning

13   over every rock, and they're literally

14   trying to figure out every place that they

15   can go to get a million dollars here, and

16   five million dollars there.   So I give you

17   that as background.

18             If you know legislators that -- all

19   hundred Members of the House are on the

20   Appropriations Commerce Committee, and all

21   forty-eight Members of the Senate are on

22   the Appropriations Commerce Committee.   So

23   if you know people in either one of those

24   bodies, tell them that we understand what

25   their problem is, but we need help. 
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 1   Because we've got to do the modeling, as

 2   you all well know, for Tulsa County, for

 3   Oklahoma County, and for the rest of the

 4   state, and we've got to do -- and build

 5   emissions inventories that allow us to

 6   really know what's going on, and we can't

 7   do that without the dollars.

 8                  MR. DYKE:   Let's continue with

 9   questions of staff.

10                  MR. WILSON:   What do we do with

11   the fines that we collect, again?   I've

12   been told this, but I forgot.

13                  MR. TERRILL:   It's goes into the

14   -- I forget what account it is, but it's

15   for the agency and it's used at Steve's

16   discretion.   It's at the Executive

17   Director's discretion to do with that

18   whatever he wants to.

19                  MR. WILSON:   So it's kind of a

20   discretionary fund.

21                  MR. TERRILL:   Yeah, because you

22   don't know for sure -- you don't have any

23   way of budgeting and you don't want to -- I

24   don't ever want to get in a situation where

25   we have to budget -- well, I won't ever get
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 1   in a situation where we have to budget

 2   anything off of a penalty, because that's

 3   not what that's for.

 4                  MR. WILSON:   How much is that

 5   fund right now?

 6                  MR. TERRILL:   Oh, it's right

 7   around a million, I think, give or take. 

 8   And that's assuming that they don't lose

 9   it.   There's some talk that the legislature

10   may come take that.   But they fund a lot of

11   other stuff out of that, too -- clean-ups -

12   - it goes back into the small community-

13   type stuff.   It just depends on whatever

14   the need that arises.

15                  MR. DYKE:   Environmental

16   education -- we've had a lot of money come

17   back through us for environmental

18   education.

19             Nadine?

20                  MS. BARTON:   I've got a question. 

21   I don't know the answer to this, and maybe

22   you don't either, but all of the monies

23   that are put in for operating expenses --

24   just take, for an example, what he was

25   talking about, the fines, a million dollars
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 1   in there.   Are those interest bearing

 2   accounts, or is that just on paper and is

 3   there some legislative action that prevents

 4   capitalizing off of fines, or capitalizing

 5   -- you know, banks can't collect -- on

 6   delinquent interest, they can't capitalize. 

 7   Do you know the answer to that?

 8                  MR. DYKE:   Maybe.   I believe that

 9   the way the government accounting system is

10   set up is those are interest bearing but

11   it's a sub-account of the state's system,

12   so I don't think the interest on any of

13   those come to the agency.

14                  MS. BARTON:   It just goes into a

15   general fund?

16                  MR. DYKE:   I think it goes into

17   the general -- yes, to the general fund. 

18   There is some -- I think there is some

19   prohibition against using that penalty

20   money for budgeting purposes of the agency. 

21   I think there's some state accounting

22   guidelines there, but I can't tell you

23   exactly what they are.   I don't know who

24   gets the interest, if that's your question.

25                  MS. BARTON:   I always want to
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 1   know, who gets the interest?   You know,

 2   that's a lot of money, when you start

 3   adding that up.

 4                  MR. DYKE:   I do have some people

 5   that have given me notice that they wish to

 6   speak.   Joe Cowan.

 7                  MR. COWAN:   Yeah.   I'm Joe Cowan,

 8   I'm the Environmental Manager for Lone Star

 9   Industries in Pryor.   I'm also the

10   Environmental Manager for the Lone Star

11   Industries plant in Berryhill, Texas.   I've

12   heard Texas rules discussed a little bit

13   today.   And oddly enough, I live in

14   Missouri, in Joplin.   And I can tell you

15   every state that I'm familiar with is

16   fighting hundreds of millions of dollars in

17   budget shortfalls, and they're squeezing

18   every rock for every drop of blood they can

19   get.   So I can understand why we're here

20   talking about fee increases.

21             However, we're concerned about the

22   rate of rise.   I notice that there's

23   essentially a colon in the rules to

24   increase fees automatically based on

25   consumer price index, and we wonder when
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 1   we're going to see the base line for that

 2   stop increasing.   If you come along with

 3   the new regulation every year or two that

 4   increases base level fee by twenty-eight or

 5   thirty percent, which seems to be

 6   historical, then that raises the amount

 7   that you apply to consumer price index to

 8   the next year and the next year, and so

 9   forth.   It makes budgeting a little tricky,

10   and even though these fees are not the

11   biggest of our expenses, they're still

12   significant at the plant level.   And money

13   we spend on fees is money we don't have to

14   spend improving our environmental program

15   in the plant.

16             In our case, and I suspect in our

17   competitor's cases, the consumer product

18   index doesn't reflect the price of cement

19   in the marketplace.   We've seen declines in

20   our prices, not increases, and that further

21   squeezes the amount of money available in

22   overhead.   So we're really interested in

23   these fees going to the purpose that they

24   were intended for, and in the amounts

25   necessary for that purpose.   And we
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 1   encourage the Air Quality Board to keep

 2   that firmly in mind.   And I can tell you,

 3   we will be contacting our legislators.

 4             Thank you.

 5                  MR. DYKE:   Any questions of Mr.

 6   Cowan?   Thank you.   

 7             Bud, did you wish to make comments

 8   today?   Howard Ground.

 9                  MR. GROUND:   My name is Howard

10   Ground, and today I'm representing the

11   Environmental Federation of Oklahoma, and

12   I'm going to talk specifically about the

13   major sources, the Part 70 sources, and the

14   increase and the impact on them.   And in

15   the past, we've worked very closely with

16   the Air Quality Department and the

17   different fee increases, and we felt like

18   we were very involved in probably

19   questioning and making sure the adequacy

20   and where that money was going and, you

21   know, want to reiterate what we went

22   through a year ago is that we really -- we

23   believe that the agency, the Air Quality

24   Department specifically, should be funded

25   adequately, but we want to make sure that
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 1   where those fees are intended to go, as you

 2   stated, are going.

 3             And I want to just remind everyone

 4   that there is already a state law that says

 5   -- and this is in 27A, 2-5-113 -- and I'm

 6   not going to read the whole thing, but it

 7   says, permit fees collected by the

 8   department pursuant to the Title V of the

 9   Federal Clean Air Act as authorized by the

10   Oklahoma Clean Air Act, all monies accrued

11   to the credit of such sub-account shall be

12   budgeted and expended by the department for

13   the sole purpose of implementing the permit

14   program as set forth in Title V.   

15             So we feel like, even if the

16   governor sets forth something that says

17   there's going to be an eight percent

18   across-the-board fee increase, that fees

19   set for Title V purposes cannot be used for

20   anything but Title V facilities.

21             And Eddie, you said that -- you

22   mentioned that this would be the first time

23   that you would actually get fees that would

24   be used outside the program.   Well, we are

25   very much against that, and we feel like
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 1   that is in opposition of the state law. 

 2   But we do want the department to be

 3   adequately funded, and we do want to work

 4   with you on this.

 5             And there was great emphasis given

 6   last year that -- by you and Mr. Dyke --

 7   that you didn't want to go through all that

 8   again, and you want to keep everyone

 9   adequately informed of the budget, and

10   right now we don't feel like we are

11   adequately informed to accept a twenty-

12   eight and a half percent increase in fees,

13   or even if it's somewhat less than that --

14   any fee increase.   That's all I have.

15                  MR. DYKE:   Thanks.   Thanks a lot. 

16   Thank you.   Questions of Mr. Ground?          

17                  MR. TERRILL:   Let me address that

18   just for a second.   If you can show me

19   where EPA has delineated what exactly Title

20   V fees can be spent for and what they can't

21   be, I'd like to see it.   Because we've had

22   this discussion, and we've asked for them

23   to come up and audit and make sure that

24   we're following the federal guidelines. 

25   That line blurs more and more every year. 
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 1   In fact, they've been directed by Congress

 2   to figure out ways for the Title V program

 3   to fund everything.   I mean, that's been

 4   their directive is to push everything off

 5   on the Title V program so that the federal

 6   appropriations can be reduced. 

 7             So I share your concern, but the

 8   practicalities of it are, we'll either come

 9   back with a proposal that you all think is

10   -- that you want to fund, or we won't. 

11   That's the whole purpose of the Council,

12   and if we don't make our case, then we

13   won't do it.   I mean, it's just that

14   simple.

15             But I agree with you, I think you

16   all deserve to know where your money is

17   going and how it's being spent.   And we're

18   hoping that some of the changes that

19   they're instituting within our finance

20   structure will -- we're close to starting

21   to get meaningful reports for us that we

22   can pass along to the finance committee and

23   then on to our fee payers, because that's

24   what we said we would do, and that's what

25   we ought to do.
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 1             Just to follow up on a comment Mr.

 2   Paden made.   The fourteen and a half

 3   million that Texas spent over the five year

 4   period or four year period, was for the

 5   near nonattainment areas.   That didn't have

 6   anything to do at all with what's going on

 7   in Houston, Dallas, Beaumont, any of those

 8   areas.   That was for San Antonio, Austin,

 9   Tyler, that area to look at near

10   nonattainment issues.   

11             One of the new things that we would

12   be looking at as part of this proposal

13   would be impacts of out of state emissions

14   on Oklahoma, and also our impact on other

15   sources or other areas, our neighbors to

16   the north and to the east of us.   We've

17   already had some inquiries from Kansas,

18   relative to the Wichita area; from

19   Missouri, relative to the Springfield;

20   about some of our impacts that they believe

21   are occurring on their sources or their

22   monitors there.   And this is part of what

23   will help us understand whether or not we

24   really are causing a problem for them, and

25   also to help us understand exactly what the
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 1   Texas impact is on a part per billion

 2   basis, so that we can better understand

 3   what we're going to have to do and what

 4   we're going to have to ask them to do, so

 5   that we don't require   industry to make

 6   deeper cuts than they would have to

 7   normally.   So that's just a part of what

 8   we'd do.

 9             We'll come back with a -- if we have

10   to come back with something, we'll come

11   back with a detailed proposal on exactly

12   what we would do with the money.   And you

13   can make the argument that, you know, the

14   Part 70 sources contributed a certain

15   amount to that problem, but so do mobil

16   sources.   So how are you going to figure --

17   how are you going to make that cut and

18   what's going to pay for what, is open for

19   debate.

20                  MR. DYKE:   Additional questions?

21                  MS. MYERS:   Thank you.   I would

22   like to ask a question.   In the proposed

23   rule that you came out with, it had twenty-

24   eight sixty-three.   Joyce said it should be

25   twenty-seven seventy-eight, and that's
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 1   based on your calculations.   But if you

 2   look at the eight percent that's being

 3   proposed by the governor's budget, you're

 4   talking about a dollar seventy-seven per

 5   ton.   That's a huge difference.   From an

 6   industry perspective, I'll have to agree

 7   with these other folks.   I have a problem

 8   with trying to do such a huge increase

 9   because in the real world, if you have a

10   budget shortfall at a plant, that plant

11   doesn't get bigger budgets.   We have to cut

12   what we're doing, we have to look at other

13   ways of doing things.   In some cases people

14   don't get raises or bonuses.   That's the

15   real world. 

16             And I think industry is under a lot

17   of pressure.   The economy downturn affects

18   us just like it does everybody else, and

19   it's a major concern.   And I'm speaking not

20   just for my industry, but also for other

21   industry folks that have talked to me about

22   it.   And it is a huge concern.   You know,

23   we all have budgets that we have to meet,

24   and this becomes a significant part of our

25   budget when we're trying to stay on track
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 1   with what we're doing.

 2                  MR. DYKE:   Max, wasn't that

 3   calculation meant to raise one point five

 4   million, not the eight percent?   The fee

 5   calculation?

 6                  MR. PRICE:   The fee calculation? 

 7   Percentage-wise?

 8                  MR. DYKE:   Wasn't it based on

 9   calculating an additional one point five

10   million dollars?

11                  MR. PRICE:   Yes, sir.

12                  MR. TERRILL:   And that's what the

13   eight percent would generate.   When we

14   first had heard they were going to do that,

15   we were under the assumption that that was

16   just -- the total amount was just going to

17   be out of -- across the board.   But that

18   money was supposed to be directed to fund

19   the air quality.   And there's been a lot of

20   concern about other fees being raised to

21   fund purposes for which they never were

22   intended.

23             You know, I don't think it's fair

24   that solid waste fees are raised and

25   they're told that they're going to divert
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 1   that money to support what we're doing.   So

 2   that was just reflective of this.   We might

 3   ought to get a dialogue started on this

 4   mobile source issue.   I mean, I have no

 5   illusions that we're going -- and I don't

 6   need that full amount.   And so it was

 7   mainly to get a dialogue started, here's

 8   the worst-case scenario, please help us

 9   over at the legislature and we'll come back

10   with something or nothing.   This whole

11   issue may go away, and you may never hear

12   about it again.   But at least we've had an

13   opportunity to get folks here and hear our

14   problems, and if they feel like they want

15   to support us at the legislature for the

16   mobil source fee, that's fine.   If they

17   don't, that's fine, too, and we'll -- at

18   the end of the session, we'll figure out

19   where we are and we'll come back to you all

20   with something or nothing and go from

21   there.

22             But if anything -- if we come back

23   with something again, it will be very

24   detailed as to what it -- how much it's

25   going to generate, what it's going to be
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 1   for, it will be a very detailed analysis,

 2   and then you all can either decide if you

 3   want us to do it or if you don't.   I don't

 4   care.   I think it's important, but if you

 5   don't, that's your job to tell us what

 6   directions, within certain guidelines

 7   anyway, what direction you all want us to

 8   go.   But your point is well taken.   I agree

 9   with it.

10                  MR. DYKE:   And while it's a small

11   component, the one thing we've not

12   interjected today is, it looks like we will

13   get an additional general revenue cut from

14   the legislature as well.   I don't know what

15   -- there was a percentage in the newspaper

16   today, I don't know if that's an additional

17   to what we've already -- can expect, or if

18   that's going to be the total.   We don't get

19   a lot of general revenue, so the impact on

20   air, at least directly, at this point is

21   not going to be great for that general

22   revenue cut.   But it could be for the

23   agency, it could be pretty good size for

24   the agency overall.    

25                  MR. PADEN:   But, David, I would
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 1   also tell you that the Board is not

 2   disposed -- or at least me, as a Board

 3   Member, is not disposed to raise fees

 4   simply to displace money that wasn't

 5   appropriated.   And so the dollar amount

 6   that's in here, if the Council approves

 7   that, still has to be approved by the

 8   Board.

 9                  MR. DYKE:   Is there anyone else

10   who wishes to speak on this matter today? 

11   Is there any additional questions from

12   anyone?   Council? 

13             Staff recommends the matter be

14   continued.   Madame Chairman.

15                  MS. MYERS:   If there's no further

16   discussion on this, I'll entertain a

17   motion.

18                  MR. BRANECKY:   I move we continue

19   this to the next meeting.

20                  MR. KILPATRICK:   I'll second.

21                  MS. MYERS:   Myrna.

22                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Branecky.

23                  MR. BRANECKY:   Yes.

24                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Wilson.

25                  MR. WILSON:   Yes.
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 1                  MS. BRUCE:   Dr. Lynch.

 2                  DR. LYNCH:   Yes.

 3                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Breisch.

 4                  MR. BREISCH:   Yes.

 5                  MS. BRUCE:   Mr. Kilpatrick.

 6                  MR. KILPATRICK:   Yes.

 7                  MS. BRUCE:   Ms. Myers.

 8                  MS. MYERS:   Yes. 

 9                  MR. DYKE:   That concludes the

10   hearing portion.

11                    (End of Proceedings)
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 1     

 2                    C E R T I F I C A T E

 3   STATE OF OKLAHOMA     )

                                   )         ss:

 4   COUNTY OF OKLAHOMA    )

 5             I, CHRISTY A. MYERS, Certified

 6   Shorthand Reporter in and for the State of

 7   Oklahoma, do hereby certify that the above

 8   proceedings is the truth, the whole truth,

 9   and nothing but the truth; that the

10   foregoing proceedings were taken in

11   stenotype by me and thereafter transcribed

12   under my direction; that said proceedings

13   were taken on the 16th day of April, 2003,

14   at Tulsa, Oklahoma; and that I am neither

15   attorney for nor relative of any of said

16   parties, nor otherwise interested in said

17   action.

18             IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

19   set my hand and official seal on this, the

20   8th day of May, 2003.

21

                         ______________________

22                       CHRISTY A. MYERS, C.S.R.

                         Certificate No. 00310
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